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Acosta v. Ginger Green, Inc. et al

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
WESTERN DIVISION

R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA, SECRETARY
OF LABOR, UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR,

Plaintiff,

GINGER GREEN, INC., a corporation; A?EL
FASHION, INC., a corporation; CHANG LE
an individual, HYE KYUNG LEE, an
individual; HAE LEE, an individual; GILSU
PARK, an individual; JE FASHION, INCta
corporation; KYU YOUNG YOO, an
individual,

Defendans.

Case No.: 2:18v-4098-ODW-SK

CONSENT JUDGMENT
AND ORDER

Do

Plaintiff R. Alexander Acosta, Secretary of Labor, United States Department

Labor (“Secretary”), and Defendants Ginger Green, Inq“Ginger Green””) Chang Lee,

Hye Kyung Lee, and Hae Lee (“Defendants”), have agreed to resolve the matters in

! The cas caption includesa typographical ermg referring to JE Apparelinc. as JE

Fashion, Inc.
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controversy in this civil action and consent to the entry of this Consagindunt in
accordance herewith:

A. The Secretary has filed a Complaint alleging that the Defendaitded
provisions of Section 15(a)(1), 29 U.S.C. 8§ 215(a)(1) of the Fair Latamdards Act of
1938, as amended (“FLSA”), and Section 11(a), 29 U.S.C. § 211(a) of the FLSA.

B. Defendants appeared by counsel, acknowledged receipt of a copy of t
Secretary’s Complaint, and filed their answer on August 9, 2018;

C. The Secretary and Defendants waive Findings of Fact and Conclusion
Law, and agree to the entry of this Consent Judgment

D. Defendants admit that the Court has jurisdiction over theggsaahd subjec
matter of this civil action and that venue lies in the Central District ofdZaila.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

E. Defendant Ginger Green is a garment manufacturer that sells apparel
clothing retailers, including TIX Companies, Inc., Ross, Fashion KBaagy Me, Suzy
Shier, A’Graci Cornerstone, and Windsor. Defendant Ginger Green secures garment
orders with their retailers and then contracts with sewing factoridsding Defendants
Aqua Fashion, Inq*Aqua”) and JE Apparel, In€:JE”), to complete the garments for
their orders. Ginger Green supplies the cut fabric, design and other stytemeqs to
the sewing factory that produces the finished garments.

F. Defendants Change Lee, Hye Kyung Lee, and Hae Lee are co-owners
Ginger Green.

G.  The Secretary’s investigation of both the Aqua and JE factory revealed
violations of the FLSA’s minimum wage, overtime, and recordkeeping provisions. At
each location, employees are paid a piece rate or a weekly salary, regardless of th
number of hours worked, resulting in hourly wages below minimum wagployees at
each location also work over 40 hours per week but do not receive overtime
compensation.

H.  The Secretary’s investigation revealed that retailer, TJX Companies, Inc.
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paid Ginger Green the same unit price for both domestic and foreign made garmel

l. The Secretary found that workers who produced Ginger Green garmer|
domestically were paid as little as $2.25 per hour.

J.  Under the FLSA’s “Hot Goods” provision, 29 U.S.C. § 215(a)(1), all
persons are prohibited from introducing into commerce goods that havebedeaa on
by employees who were not paid the wages required under the FLSA.

K.  Following inspection of the Aqua factory, Wage and Hour investigators
notified Ginger Green that all garments made by Aqua within the last 90 dag$ot
goods and that the Secretary objected to shipment of these goods intatenterst
commerce.

L.  Ginger Green agreed to refrain from shipping or selling hot goodssunle
and wtil the Secretary’s investigation was resolved with payment to the workers of all
monies due. Ginger Green promptly violated this agreement and continugul goths
identified as “hot goods” while lying to the Secretary about the shipment of thesego
and actively obscuring the evidence that they had shipped the hot goods.

M.  After filing his Complaint, the Secretary identified the following seven (
additional domestic sewing contractors producing garments for Ginger, &y Hee
Park dba as Super Seam, Inc., SC Style, Inc., HJ Fashion, Inc., KBKB Fashion, In
is Well, Inc., Keep in Touch TS, Inc., and BSY Fashion, Inc., all of which operated

violation of the FLSA’s wage provisions, thus producing hot goods for Ginger Green.

ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Defendants, their officers

agents, servants, and employees and those persons in actiged comparticipation with
them who receive actual notice of this order (by personal service or cibgetva, and
they hereby are, permanently enjoined and restrained from viokingrovisions of
Section 15(a)(1), 29 U.S.C. 8§ 215(a)(1) of the Fair Labor Standards Act 8f 49:
amended (“FLSA”), in any of the following manners:

1. Defendants shall not, contrary to FLSA § 15(a)(1), 29 U.S.C. § 215(a)(|
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transport, offer for transportation, ship, deliver, or sell in cenva (or ship, deliver, o
sell with knowledge or reason to believe that shipment, elglivor sale in commerce
intended) goods in the production of which any empldgé¢he Defendant or other(s
has been employed in violation of the FLSA’s minimum wage (29 U.S.C. § 206) or
overtime pay provisions (29 U.S.C. § 207);

2. Defendants shall not fail to disgorge, from the gross proceedsiof the
having sold or shipped in commerce goods that had been worked on loyesspof
Aqua Fashion, Inc., JE Apparel, Inc., Sung Hee Park dba as Super Seam, Inc., SQ
Inc., HJ Fashion, Inc., KIBB Fashion, Inc., All is Well, Inc., Keep in Touch TS, Inc.
and BSY Fashion, Inevho were not paid the minimum wage and overtime required
the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. 88 206 and 207, an amount sufficient to cover the baek oag
to these employees under the FLSA. The amount hereby found due to these empl
$357,993.81 for the following periods:

Agqua Fashion, Inc.: January 10, 2018 to May 7, 2018

JE Apparel, Inc.February 9, 2018 to May 9, 2018

Super Seam, IncMarch15, 2018 to June 12, 2018;

SC Style, Inc.: March 15, 2018 to June 12, 2018;

HJ Fashion, Inc.: January 31, 2018 to May 1, 2018;

KBKB Fashion, Inc.: March 14, 2018 to June 11, 2018;

All'is Well, Inc.: March 15, 2018 to June 12, 2018;

Keep in Touch TS, Inc.: March 14, 2018 to June 11, 2018;

BSY Fashion, Inc.: March 15, 2018 to June 12, 2018.

a. Defendantgreviously depsited aranmount sufficient tacoverthe
backwages due witthe Wage an#iour Division The Secretarghall alocate and
distribute the remittancer the proceedshered, after deducting the amount legal
deductions anfbrwardingsad funds to the appropriate agenciesthe persons owed
wagesfor the time periodéistedin paagraph Zabove or totheir estates that be
necessary, in his sole discretion, amy moneynot sopaidwithin aperiod of three
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years from the date of its receipt, because of an inability to locate the proper persg
because of their refusal to accept it, shall be deposited by the Secretary in a speci
deposit account for payment to the proper persons and upon suchyirtalphy within
3 years, shall then be deposited in the Treasury of the United States, aanescsl|
receipts, pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(c);

3.  Within 30 days of the entry of this Judgment, Defendants shall hire a
independent third party monitor, acceptable to and approved bgthet&y, to monitor
all of their domestic sewing, cutting, finishing, trimming gorohting contractors
(hereafter “contractor(s)”) to enforce the contractors’ compliance with the FLSA. The
monitor shall not be considered independent if it represents ththenanufacturer or
contractor involved in this action in any dealings with other partidsedDepartment of
Labor.

a. The monitoring program shall include the following components:
I. Random and unannounced site visits to the contractor, atoleas
quarterly basis;
il. Review of the contractor’s timecards and payroll records on at least a
quarterly basis;
iii. Private and confidential interviews of at least 20% of therent
employees to determine the hours they work and the waggsath

ns or
al

paid. The names of the employees who are interviewed shall not be

disclosed to the employer. At least one half of the intervidall be
done off work premises;

iv. Disclosure to the contractor and Defendant of any FLSA compli
issues revealed by the monitoring without revealing the namg
employees who provided the information;

V. Review of the contractor’s garment registration to determine if the
contractor is operating under a valid garment registration;

vi. The Defendant shall not take any adverse action against anyyes|
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who cooperates with the monitor or who provides informagioout
violations of the FLSA.
vii. The monitor shall produce written reports of its fimgk, which must
address each of the subjects required under this paragraph. Def
shall maintain these reports for a period of three years and s
copies to representatives of the Secretary of Labor upon their req
b. Defendantshall prodice copiesof these monitoringreports to all domestic
retailers towhich Ginger Greermprovidesgoods including TIX, Companiesinc. Ross,
Fashion Nova, Gaudy Me, Suzy Shier, A’Graci Cornerstone, and Windsor, within ten
(10) calendar daysof their receiptDefendantshall also maintain a recoraf its
submissiorof these monitoringeports to their retaileyand produce thisecordto
representatives of tHgecreary of Laba upontheir request. Defendandisall also
produce a copy of these monitorireportsto Wage andHour DivisionRegional
GarmentCoordinatorHester Smithet Smth.Hester@dol.gov.

4. Where the monitor identifies FLSA wage violations at a contractor’s
establishment, Defendants shadsure thathe violations are corrected atie
employees receatheir proper payin the nextregularly schreduled payrollDefendants
have thirty business dagdter learning of the violatiomo correctanyother FLSA
violations i.e. recordkeepifiviolations, discovered at a contractor’s establishment.
Defendantshall notify the DepartmentfoLabor whensuch violationsare foundand the
corrective measures takddefendants shall seradetterto the District Directar, Wage
andHour Division 915 Wilshire BoulevardSuite 960, LA, CA 90017, or byemail to
bui.kimchi@dol.govdentifying the violations the backwageshatwere paidand with
copiesof the documentatioshowing the paymentsade toenployeesat the time
paymentwasmacde. This letter should kb sentas soonas possible after tviolation has
beencorrected but inno event shaliit besent later thad0 business dayefter making
the correction.
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5. Defendants shall not enter into any agreement with any contractor or
provide any work to that contractor until that contractor has beaitoned and
Defendants have grounds for believing that the contractor is ancdontihue to pay its
employees in compliance with the FLSA. Defendants must document theirdrakisiif
belief of the contract’s future compliance prior to providing any work to the
contractor. Further, Defendants shall not contract with or provide wahyt contractor
who was not monitored in at least the prior quarter.

6. To ensure that their garment contractors pay employees the wage rate
required by the FLSA, Defendants shall establish a code of conduct for their garm¢
contractors requiring FLSA compliance. Defendants shall produce a copyrof thei
proposed code of conduct to the Wage and Hour Division within sixty days @ftexe
of this Consent Judgment. Upon its approval by the DOL, Defenslaalisdistribute the
approved code of conduct to all of their current contractors, prdavia all new
contractors, post copies in their own facility, and post copies so@al media sites
including their web site and any and all social media pagescdtiesof conduct shall
be maintained in English, Spanish and Korean.

a. The Code of Conduct shall set forth at least the following:

I. All contractors must comply with the Fair Labor Standards Act arn
the state wage provisions. This means that all contractors must
their employees at least the required minimum wage rate and an
overtime rate of time and oreif the employee’s regular rate for all
hours worked over 40 in a workweek.

d
)ay

ii. All contractors must provide a safe work environment, in compliance

with applicable health and safety codes.
iii. All contractors must maintain a time keeping system that accurat
records the hours worked by their employees.

ey
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viil.

7. Defendantshall notify their garmentontractors that theghall notconduct
businessvith any cortractor who is unwilling ounable tacomply with the FLSA the
code of conducind the terms of this Judgment whotakesany adwerse actioror
retaliatesagainstany employee for cooperatingith the monitor or reportingiolations

of the FLSA;

Vi.

Vil.

iX.

Employees must clock in their start time and end time each day.
Employees must record their own hours. The contractor is strictly
forbidden from clocking in for employees.

Employees may be paid on a piece rate basis, but if they are paif
this manner, the contractor must review the employee’s wages

weekly to ensure that the employee is paid the minimum wage
required by the FLSA for the employee’s hours worked. If the piece
rate earnings do not equal the minimum wage for 40 hours, the
contractor must make up the difference.

All employees who work in excess of 40 hours per week are enti
to be paid an overtime rate of time and one-half their regular rate
the hours over 40. To pay overtime, the contractor must add up t
employee’s weekly earnings and divide that number by the numbe
of hours worked to get the employee’s regular rate. The contractor
must pay the employee one half of the employee’s regular rate for the
hours over 40, in addition to the piece rate earnings. The attachg
Exhibit A contains examples of minimum wage and overtime
calculations;

The contractor must maintain a record of the employee hours wo
and the amounts paid,;

The contractor must inform Defendants immediately whenever th
contractor is unable to meet any requirement of the FLSA,;

The contractor’s obligation to cooperate with the monitor.
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8. Defendantshall require all garmentontractorswith whomthey do
business to maintain true aacturate timeandpayroll recordsand produce copies of
themto the Defendant’s monitor on a regular basis as follows:

a. The contractorsnust maintairtrue andacairate time anghayroll records
thatincluce all of the employeewho perform workfor it, regardlessf
whetrertheyarepaidin cashor by check;

b. All garmentcontractorsmustmaintainat least two years/orth of all
time andpayroll recordsincluding supportinglocumentationonthe premises of
the contractors’ establishments. Supportingdocumentation include$or employees
paid onapiece rag basis the piece tickets omvhichthe employee pawg
basedandcas payrecordsfor employees paid icash;

c. Defendantshall obtainwritten confirmationfromall of their garment
contractorghatthey are maintaininthe time andpayroll recordsrequired bythis
paragraplattheir establishmerand shall prodoethese recordi representatives
of the Departmentfd_aba upontheir request;

d. Defendantshall require all garmentontractorswith which it does
businesdo submita copy of these records the monitor ndater than one month
afterthe periodvorkedas reflected on threcords; i.e.the contractor musubmit the
records for workweeknding 1/01/19 no lag¢rthan 2/01/19.

9. Defendantsnustproduce a lisbf their garmentontractors andheir
addresses oaquarterlybassto U.S.Department of Lalg District Directar, Wage and
Hour Division 915 Wilshire BoulevardSuite 960, Los Angeles CA 90017 and Wage
andHour DivisionRegionalGarmentCoordinator Hester Smitat
Smith.Hester@dol.gov

10. Defendantsnustproduce a lisof their garmentontractors tcal retailers

for which Defendantgroduce goods oramonthlybass.
11. For all orders thatequire domest production Defendantgnustnotify the
retailer for whontheorder isintendedthat the garmentwill be made domesticallgnd
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thatDefendantwill be requiredto pay their domestic contractor a higher rate théme
goodswereto be produced outsielof the United States.

a. For all domestic productigiefendantshall require eaclbf their domestic
contractors to make production facilities available to Defendant’s retailers to conduct
time studies.

b. When domestic retailefsil to paya sufficient price for the goods toeet
minimumwage and overtime requiremerigefendantsill notify theU.S. Department
of Laba, District Directar, Wage andHour Division 915Wilshire BoulevardSuite
960, Los Angeles CA 90017and Wage an#iour DivisionRegional Garment
Coordinator Hester Smitdt Smith.Hester@dol.gowrior tobeginningwork with a

garmentontracta, Defendantshall notify the DepartmentfoLabor andoprovide the
contractor’s name and the anticipated dates of production as well as deadlines for
deliveryto the retailer.

c. Prior tobeginningwork with agarmentcontracta, Defendantshall also
notify all retailers for which it produces goods and provide the contractor’s name and
address.

12. Defendants quality control representative shall keep a record of every visit
made to the domestaontractors The QC representative mustk for andmake a
copy of thetime cardsand compare tle number ofworkersin the shogo the time cards
atleastonce eachweek.

13.  To assess the contractor’s compliance with the FLSA Defendants shall
reviewthe contractor’s time and payroll recordsat reasonable intervalm light of the
production requirementd the goodghatthe contractor iproducingfor Defendants.
Defendants shatlonduct thisanalysisas frequently as necessaryersure the
contractor’s compliance withthe FLSA, shall document thianalysiswhen it is done,
maintainrecrds of thisanalysisfor two yearsand provide copief it to representatives
of the Secretary of Labapontheir request. Furdr, Defendantshall maintaincopies
of the contractor’s time andpayroll records for periodof three years. These records

10
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may be maintained in the monitor’s office, but the Defendants are required t@ssure
themselves that the monitis maintaining the recordss required by this Judgment.
Defendantshall produce these records to representatives @aloestry of Laba upon
their request;

14. Defendantshall require allcontractorswith whomit does businessvho
are subjecto the garmentregistrationrequirementof the State of Caliform, to
maintainavalid garmentegistration Defendants shatiot do businessvith any gament
contractor withoutvalid registration;

15. Defendantshall maintainfor a period of three yearspies of all cost
sheetsand other productionrecordsrelatedto their sewing contractorand supply copies
of these records tepresentativesf the Secretary of Lalvaupontheir request;

16. Defendantshall maintainrecords of all shipmentsmade toretailers for at
least three yeaifsom the date tle shipmentwasmade and supplgopes of these record
to representatives of the Secretary of Labpontheir request;

17. Defendantsnall supplyall of their contractorsvith copies of the attached
Exhibit A regardingovertime calculations anéxhibit B, which summarizeterms of
this Judgnent and the employees’ rights under the FLSA. The English, Spanish, and
Korean versiongareattachedDefendants sha#insure that their contractordistribute a
copyof Exhibits A and B teceachof their currentenployeeswithin 30days of entry of
this Judgment, in the employees’ native languages, provide copies to all new hires, and
post a copy at each of thewntractor’s establishments;

18. Defendantshall provide allretailersfor which theyproducegoodswith a
copy of thisConsent Judgment.

19. Defendants shalldvise the Wage an#Hour Division of anychange in
Ginger Green’s hame;and it is further

ORDEREDthat eat party shall bea its ownfeesand other expensesicurred by

such partyn connectiorwith anystage othis proceeding, includingut notlimited to

11
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Dated: November 6, 2019

Dated: 2/27/19

ELLIOT KIM
CHONG ROH
LAW OFFICE OF ELLIOTT KIM

Attorneys for Defendants,

GINGER GREEN, INC., CHANG LEE,
HYE KUNG LEE, and HAE LEE

Dated: \/&?/lﬁ

il

CHANG LEE
Individually and for Defendant
GINGER GREEN, INC.

Dated: 9['/2" [ 6]-
\/ \

HYE KYUNG LEE
Individually and for Defendant

GINGER GREEN, INC.

CONSENT JUDGMENT
Case No.: 2:18-cv-4098-ODW-SK

attorneys’ fees, which may be available under the Equal Access to Justice Act, as
amended, to the date of entry of the Judgment herein; and, it is further
ORDERED that this Court retains qu’sdiction of this action for purposes of

enforcing compliance with the terms of this ConsentJudgment. -

2%

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
Dated: November 17, 2018

KATE S. O’'SCANNLAIN
Solicitor of Labor

JANET M. HEROLD
Regional Solicitor

SUSAN SELETSKY
Chief Counsel for FLSA

/s/ Susan Seletsky
Trial Attorney

Attorneys for the Plaintiff Secretary
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
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Individually and for Defendant
GINGER GREEN, INC.
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Exhibit A
Computing minimum wage and overtime on piecework:
Example 1:
Employee A produced $200 in piecework and worked 40 hours
$200 / 40 hours = $5.00 per hour
Difference = $8.00 (Calif. Minimum Wage) - $5.00 = $3.00 per hour (underpaid)
$3.00 per hour x 40 hours = $120.00 minimum wage due

Example 2:

Employee B produced $425.00 in piecework and worked 50 hours
$425 / 50 hours = $8.50 per hour

$8.50 per hour x 0.5 (half time) = $4.25 per hour due for OT hours
$4.25 x 10 hours = $42.50 in overtime premium due

Example 3:

Employee C produced $365.00 in piecework and worked 50 hours

$365 / 50 hours = $7.30 per hour

Difference in Reg. Rate = $8.00 (State minimum wage) - $7.30 = $.70 per hour
$.70 x 50 hours = $35.00 in regular rate due

$8.00 x 0.5 (half time) x 10 hours of OT = $40.00 in overtime premium due
Total Due: $35.00 in regular rate and $40.00 in overtime premium - $75.00
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Exhibit A

(Spanish)
Como computar el sueldo minimo y el tiempo y medio (overtime) para los
trabajadores que ganan por pieza:

Ejemplo No. 1:
El empleado A hizo $200.00 en trabajo de piezas y trabajo 40 horas.
e $200.00 /40 horas = $5.00 por hora
e Ladiferencia es: $8.00 (sueldo minimo por hora en California) - $5.00 = $3.(
por hora. $3.00 por hora es lo que se le debe a esta persona.
e Total: $3.00 por hora x 40 horas = $120.00 que se le debe al empleado por
sueldo minimo.

Ejemplo No. 2:
El empleado B hizo $425.00 en trabajo de piezas y trabajo 50 horas.
e $425.00 /50 horas = $8.50 por hora

e $8.50 por horx 0.5 (la mitad) = $4.25 que se debe por hora por cada hora d
tiempo extra (overtime).
e Total: $4.25 por hora x 10 horas = $42.50 que se le debe al empleado por
tiempo extra (overtime).
Ejemplo No. 3:

El empleado C hizo $365.00 en trabajo de piezas y trabajo 50 horas.
e $365.00 /50 horas = $7.30 por hora

e La diferencia en Salario Regular es: $8.00 (sueldo minimo por hora en California

- $7.30 = $0.70 que se le debe al empleado por cada hora $0.70 x 50 horas
=$35.00 es lo que se debe en Salario Regular.
e $8.00 por horx 0.5 (la mitad)x 10 horas extras (overtime) = $40.00 que se le
debe al empleado por tiempo extra (overtime).

e Total: $35.00 en Salario Regular y $40.00 por tiempo extra (overtime) =
$75.00.
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Exhibit B
LEGAL NOTICE TO ALL EMPLOYEES

The Fair Labor Standards Act providesthat allenployeesmust be
paid minimum wagefor all hours worked. In additigremployeesnustbe
paidovertime, atarate of time and one half their regularerdor the
hourstheywork over 40in aworkweek All enployeeswhether they
are paidchourly or onapiece rae basisare entitled tcan overtime premium
when theywork over40 hours.

To relve a lawsuit brought bihe Department of Labor, the United
StatesDistrict Court entered an Order forbiddir@inger Green, Inc., a garment
manufactuer, from shipping goodsewn for its label orwhich employeesvere notpaid
the minimumwage or overtime required biye Fair Labor StandardsAct.

All enployeeswho work in this edablishment shouldeport violations
of minimum wage andvertime tothe U.S Departmentf Labar, Wage and
Hour Division, at(213) 894-6375Your name willnot bedisclosed.
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Exhibit B
(Spanish)

NOTICIA LEGAL A TODOS LOS EMPLEADOS

La LeydeNorma Justasde Trabajo determina gase les debpagara tododos
empleados®l sueldo minimgpor todaslas horas que ellos trabajehla vez,también
estipub que cada empleadque trabaje sobre tiempmas de 4Gorasenuna semana
laboral se lesdeberapagar a tiempyg medio de lo gaganenpor cadihora de sobre
tiempotrabaja@. Todoslosenpleadosindependientemeate que se les pague po
horao por pza.tienendeechoaque se lepagueprima sobrdiempocuandotrabajan
mas de 4Morasen una semana laboral.

Para resolver tlademanda laborahiciada por eDepartament®el Trabajq la
corte delDistrito delos EstadodJnidosexpidié una ordemue prohibe &inger Green,
Inc., una fabrica de rapde envarlaproducciénde etiqguetas susdistribuidoress en
la fabricaciorde dichos productoso se lepago alos enpleados sueldominimo o el
solre tiemporequerido por ld_ey de Norma Justasde Trabajo.

Si usted piensa qno sele pagode acuerd@lo que la leyindica,por fava llama
al Departamentald Trabajo de logstadodJnidos Divisién deHorasy Salaric al
(213)894-6375. Su nombre seantendraonfidencial.
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